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SELYA, Circuit Judge. On February 21, 1996, a federal

grand jury indicted defendant-appellant José R Pérez-Carrera
(along with two codefendants). The indictnment contained siXx
counts, viz., aiding and abetting a bank robbery, death
resulting, in violation of 18 U . S.C. 88 2 and 2113(a), (d), (e)
(count 1); aiding and abetting the use and carri age of automatic
weapons during and in relation to a crinme of violence, in
violation of 18 U.S.C. 88 2 and 924(c) (1), (3) (count 2); aiding
and abetting the taking of a motor vehicle by force and
violence, intending to cause death or serious bodily harm and
resulting in death, in violation of 18 U. S.C. 88 2 and 2119(3)
(count 3); aiding and abetting the use and carriage of firearns
during a carjacking, in violation of 18 U S C. 88 2 and
924(c) (1), (3) (count 4); aiding and abetting the possession or
receipt of firearnms shipped or transported in interstate or
foreign comerce, in violation of 18 U S.C. 88 2, 922(g), and
924(a)(2) (count 5); and aiding and abetting the possessi on of
two sem -automatic assault rifles in violation of 18 U.S.C. 88§
2, 922(v)(1), and 924(a)(1)(B) (count 6). The appel | ant
originally pleaded not guilty across the board but subsequently
nmoved to revise his plea.

The district court convened a change-of-plea hearing

on April 9, 1997. During that session, the appellant w thdrew
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his original plea and entered a plea of guilty to counts 1, 2,
3, 4, and 6 pursuant to a witten agreenment with the gover nment
(the Plea Agreenent). After conducting an extensive colloquy,
see Fed. R Crim P. 11, the district court accepted the changed
pl ea and schedul ed di sposition for August 15, 1997.

After several del ays, the court convened the
di sposition hearing on May 27, 1998. At that time, the court
di sm ssed count 5 of the indictnment and sentenced the appel | ant
to concurrent 293-nmonth incarcerative terms on counts 1 and 3;
a simlarly concurrent 60-nonth term on count 6; a 120-nonth
termon count 2, consecutive to the sentences inposed on counts
1, 3, and 6; and a 240-nonth termon count 4, consecutive to all
t he other sentences. Facing the grimprospect of 653 nonths in
prison, Pérez-Carrera filed this tinmely appeal.

Proceedi ngs before this court have brought to |ight a
series of bevues. The Plea Agreenent erroneously recited that
count 2 exposed the appellant to "[a] mandatory sentence of five
years." But because count 2 <charged the appellant wth
violating 18 U.S.C. 8§ 924(c)(1) by the use and carriage of
automati c weapons, the offense carried a mandatory sentence of
ten years under 18 U. S.C. 8§ 924(c)(1)(B). By |ike token, the
Pl ea Agreenent m stakenly recited that the appellant faced "[ a]

statutory maxi nrum sentence of TEN (10) years inprisonnent” on
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count 6. But because that count charged the appellant with
aiding and abetting in the unlawful possession of two sen -
automati c assault weapons, as that termis defined in 18 U.S. C.
8§ 921(a)(30), the offense carried a maxi num penalty of five
years. See 18 U. S.C. 88 922(v)(1), 924(a)(1)(B). These errors
were repeated in the change-of-plea colloquy. During that
exchange, the district court told the appellant that, if he pled
guilty, he would be exposed to a mandatory sentence of five
years on count 2 and a nmaxi num sentence of ten years on count 6.
These statenents were inaccurate.!?

By the time of sentencing, the probati on departnent had
filed a presentence report that recited the correct sentencing
parameters for counts 2 and 6, and the court sentenced the
appellant within those paraneters. No one spotted the
i nconsi stenci es between the representations originally made to
the appellant and the sentence actually inposed. Despite the
| ack of any contenporaneous objection, however, we nay review

the sentence for plainerror. United States v. Gandi a- Maysonet,

227 F.3d 1, 5 (1st Cir. 2000).2? We warm to that task, m ndful

The Plea Agreement accurately described the penalties
associated with the other counts of conviction, and the district
court gave the appellant correct advice anent those penalties in
t he change- of - pl ea col | oquy.

°The test for plain error is multi-dinensional. See United
States v. O ano, 507 U. S. 725, 732 (1993) (explaining required
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that part of the plain error calculus requires an appellant to
show that an error was not harmless, i.e., that it affected his
substantial rights. See supra note 2; see also Fed. R Crim P
11(h).

As to count 6, the m sstatenments made by t he gover nment
and the district court obviously were harm ess (and, therefore,
not a proper ground for setting aside the appellant's plea or
sentence). Although the prosecutor and the court m sinformed
the appellant as to the maximum penalty for count 6, the
sentence actually inposed was not only within legal limts, but
al so was substantially less than the m staken maxi mum Under

those circunstances, there was no prejudice.? E.g., United

States v. Camacho, 233 F.3d 1308, 1319 (11th Cir. 2000),

petition for cert. filed (U S. Feb. 20, 2001) (No. 00-8593);

United States v. MDonald, 121 F.3d 7, 11 (1st Cir. 1997).

Count 2 presents a different problem The gover nnment
and the district court incorrectly advised the appellant that

this count carried a mandatory five-year penalty. The appell ant

show ng as enconpassing (1) an error (2) that is obvious and (3)
that affects the defendant's substantial rights, (4) provided
that the error, if uncorrected, also may affect the fairness,
integrity, or public repute of judicial proceedings); Gandia-
Maysonet, 227 F.3d at 5-6 (sane).

3To cinch the harm ess-error inquiry, the sentence inposed
on count 6 was |ess than, yet concurrent with, the untainted
sentences validly inposed on counts 1 and 3.
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pl eaded guilty based on that information. The court nonet hel ess
sentenced him to ten years in prison. In light of the
representations nmade to the appellant in connection with his
guilty plea, this sentence cannot stand.

To its credit, the governnent concedes that, under
t hese circunmstances, the inposition of a ten-year sentence on
count 2 violates Rule 11(c)(1) and is not harm ess within the
contenplation of Rule 11(h). In view of this concession, we
think that the error is easily corrected. After all, the
district court did informthe appellant that his plea to count
2 would result in the inposition of a mandatory sentence of five
years. Since the United States concedes the error and inforns
us that it has no objection to the | esser sentence, there is no
need to set aside the appellant's plea to this count. Rather
we instruct the district court, on remand, to modify the
sentence inposed by reducing the incarcerative termunder count

2 to five years. See Fed. R Crim P. 43(c)(4); United States

v. Moree, 928 F.2d 654, 655-56 (5th Cir. 1991).

We are cogni zant of the appellant's claimthat, had he
been aware of the errors discussed above, he would not have
entered a guilty plea at all. Appellant's Br. at 10. Thi s
claim however, is made in wholly conclusory terns. We have

reviewed the record with care and find no basis for suspecting
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that the msinformation about the ternms of inprisonment
avai l able in respect to counts 2 and 6 deprived the appel |l ant of
a full wunderstanding of the consequences of his actions or
ot herwi se influenced his decision to change his plea. After
all, counts 1 and 3 —each of which carried a maxi nrum term of
[ife inprisonment —were the centerpieces of the indictnment, and
it is surpassingly difficult to believe that, having decided to
bite the bullet and plead to those grave charges, a nore
accurate description of the penalties associated with counts 2
and 6 woul d have made a di spositive difference.

We add two observations relating to different subjects.
The first deals with a pro se brief filed by the appellant. W
have carefully reviewed that subm ssion (which dwells on the
government's refusal to nove for a downward departure at
sentenci ng pursuant to USSG 85K1.1) and find it wholly | acking

in merit. See, e.qg., Wade v. United States, 504 U S. 181, 185-

86 (1992) (holding that a defendant nust make substanti al
showi ng of inproper notive to force review of the prosecutor's
refusal to seek a "substantial assistance" downward departure);

United States v. Alegria, 192 F.3d 179, 183 (1st Cir. 1999)

(simlar); United States v. Anparo, 961 F.2d 288, 293 (1st Cir.

1992) (noting that wholly conclusory all egati ons cannot overcone

t he governnment notion requirenent).
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Qur second observation relates to yet another pro se
filing. Wile this appeal was pending, the appellant served a
pro se notion suggesting that his appointed appellate counsel
had failed to raise various defenses and was, therefore,
ineffective.* By separate order, we agreed to treat this notion
as a supplenental pro se brief.

We have considered this subm ssion. W think that it
falls within the anmbit of our oft-stated rule "that fact-
specific clains of ineffective assistance cannot nmke their

debut on direct review of crimnal convictions." United States

v. Mala, 7 F.3d 1058, 1063 (1st Cir. 1993) (collecting cases).
G ven the need for factfinding —a task that we, as an appellate
court, are neither equipped nor inclined to undertake —that
rule applies here. Consequently, we dism ss the appellant's
i neffective assistance claim w thout prejudice to his right to
assert it in the district court by way of a petition for post-
conviction relief under 28 U S.C. § 2255.

We need go no further. Despite the unfortunate errors
that occurred in the |lower court, we see no manifest injustice

and, thus, no conpelling reason for setting aside the

4“The appel |l ant apparently faults his counsel for neglecting
to pursue sundry theories of prosecutorial m sconduct or to
expose m srepresentati ons supposedly nade by his trial counsel.
These argunents depend al nost exclusively on facts that are not
evident fromthe existing record.
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appellant's conviction or allowing himto withdraw his guilty
pl ea. Since the only cognizable defect in his sentence is
easily corrected, we remand the case to the district court for
the entry of a nodified sentence in regard to count 2 and, as
nodi fi ed, uphold the judgnment bel ow.

It is so ordered.
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